
Argyll and Bute Council 
Comhairle Earra Ghaidheal agus Bhoid 
 
Customer Services 
Executive Director:  Douglas Hendry 

 
 

Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT 
Tel:  01546 602127  Fax:  01546 604444 

DX 599700 LOCHGILPHEAD 
e.mail –douglas.hendry@argyll-bute.gov.uk 

 
 

25 September 2012 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
A meeting of the BUTE AND COWAL AREA COMMITTEE will be held in the CASTLE HOUSE, 
CASTLE GARDENS, DUNOON on TUESDAY, 2 OCTOBER 2012 at 10:00 AM, which you are 
requested to attend. 
 
 

Douglas Hendry 
Executive Director - Customer Services 

 

 
BUSINESS 

 
 1. APOLOGIES  

 
 2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
 3. MINUTES OF MEETING OF 7TH AUGUST 2012 (Pages 1 - 6) 

 
 4. DUNOON FAIRTRADE GROUP  
  Chairman Mr Raymond Madill  

 
 5. PA23BID - PRESENTATION  

 
 6. CUSTOMER SERVICES  

 
  (a) Area Committee Meeting Cycle (Pages 7 - 10) 

 
 7. COMMUNITY SERVICES  

 
  (a) Abbeyfield Home, Kames - verbal report  

 
  (b) School Holidays and In Service Days: 2013/2014 and 2014/2015 (Pages 11 - 

18) 
 

  (c) Dunoon Grammar School Performance Report 2011/12 (Pages 19 - 38) 
 

Public Document Pack



 8. DEVELOPMENT & INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES  
 

  (a) Japanese Knotweed Control Bute & Cowal Area (Pages 39 - 42) 
 

  (b) Bute & Cowal Headstones (Pages 43 - 46) 
 

  (c) Provision of Bollards, restriction of vehicle access to Victoria Parade, Dunoon 
(Pages 47 - 50) 

 
 9. NOTICE OF MOTION UNDER STANDING ORDER 14  
  Moved by Councillor L Scoullar, seconded by Councillor J R Walsh 

 
Following the news recently released that the Scottish Government intends to permit 
the lives of two ageing nuclear power station to be prolonged until 2033, Bute and 
Cowal Area Committee recommends to Argyll and Bute Council that it. 
 

1. Notes the grave concerns that: 
 

(a) An expert report published very recently by the ten strong group of 
Nuclear Free Scottish Councils (N.F.S.C), says that Ministers are 
wrong to allow Torness and Hunterston to continue running for two 
more decades. 

(b) Hunterston B station is already older than most of the reactors which 
were closed by the German Government, following the Fukushima 
disaster last year. 

(c) The German Government intends that usage economies will cut 
demand there for electricity by ten percent to meet these closures, 
while in Scotland we are expecting a rise in usage of ten percent. 

(d) The author of the report Pete Roche, who is an expert policy advisor to 
the (N.F.S.C), warns that “Milking Scottish reactors dry is another way 
of maximising the chances of an accident as these reactors get older 
and more decrepit”. 

 
2. Recommends that the Council, 
 

(a) Acknowledges the potential future danger from an ageing Hunterston 
B, as indicated in the expert report, to the people of Argyll and Bute, 
especially Bute and Cowal which are only six and ten miles distant, 
respectively. 

(b) Expresses its deep concerns on the potential future adverse health 
implications for the people of Bute and Cowal in particular and Argyll 
and Bute also Scotland generally. 

(c) Agrees to object in the strongest possible terms to the Scottish 
Government and to represent those terms to the First Minister Alex 
Salmond. 

  
 



 

 10. EXEMPT ITEMS  
 

 The Committee will be asked to pass a resolution in terms of Section 50(a)94) of the Local 
Government (Scotland) Act 1973 to exclude the public for items of business with an “E” on 
the grounds that it is likely to involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined in the 
appropriate paragraph of Part 1 of Schedule 7a to the Local Government (Scotland) Act 
1973. 
 
The appropriate paragraph is:- 
  

 E1 - Paragraph 6 Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (other than the authority) 

  
 

 E2 - Paragraph 9 Any terms proposed or to be proposed by or to the authority in the 
course of negotiations for a contract for the acquisition or disposal of 
property or the supply of goods or services. 

  
E1  (a) Dunoon Youth Football League - report to follow  

 
E2  (b) 60b Edward Street, Dunoon (Pages 51 - 52) 

 
E2  (c) Business Case for lighting at the playpark in Sandbank (Pages 53 - 58) 

 

BUTE & COWAL AREA COMMITTEE 
 
 Councillor Gordon Blair Councillor Michael Breslin
 Councillor Robert Macintyre Councillor Bruce Marshall
 Councillor Alex McNaughton Councillor James McQueen
 Councillor Len Scoullar Councillor Isobel Strong
 Councillor Dick Walsh 
 
 Contact: Eilidh FitzPatrick, Area Governance Assistant, 01369 707135 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
MINUTES of MEETING of BUTE AND COWAL AREA COMMITTEE held in the EAGLESHAM 

HOUSE, MOUNTPLEASANT ROAD, ROTHESAY  
on TUESDAY, 7 AUGUST 2012  

 
 

Present: Councillor R Macintyre (Chair) 
 

 Councillor G Blair (Vice Chair) Councillor L Scoullar 
 Councillor M Breslin Councillor I Strong 
 Councillor B Marshall  
 Councillor A McNaughton  
   
Attending: Iain Jackson - Governance Manager  

Belinda Ruthven  - Area Governance Assistant 
 Callum Robertson -  Roads Performance Manager 
 Liz Marion - Social Economy Development Officer 
 Caroline Sheen - Estate Surveyor 

Donald Kelly - Legal Services Manager 
Alison McIlroy, Service Officer, Grounds & Horticulture 
Jim Smith - Head of Roads and Amenity Services 
 

 
 The Chairman ruled and the Committee agreed, in terms of Standing Order 3.2.2 that 

reports regarding the Roads Capital Reconstruction Programme, dealt with at Item (6e) 
of this minute, are taken as matters of urgency due to decisions being needed before 
the next scheduled Area Committee meeting. 
 

 1. APOLOGIES 
 

  Apologies for absence were intimated on behalf of Councillors J McQueen and 
Councillor J R Walsh. 
 

 2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

  There were no Declarations of Interest 
 

 3. MINUTES 
 

  (a) MINUTE OF MEETING  6TH JUNE 2012 
 

   The Minute of the Meeting of 6th June 2012 was approved as a correct 
record. 
 

  (b) MINUTE OF MEETING  20TH JUNE 2012 
 

   The Minute of the Meeting of 20th June 2012 was approved as a correct 
record. 
 

 4. CUSTOMER SERVICES 
 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



  (a) APPOINTMENT TO OUTSIDE ORGANISATIONS WITHIN THE BUTE & 
COWAL AREA 

 
   Members were asked in a Report by the Area Governance Manager,  to 

consider the appointment of an Elected Member to  the Lower Clyde 
Greenspace Organisation. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee agreed to appoint Councillor B Marshall to the Lower Clyde 
Greenspace Organisation. 
 
(Reference: Report by the Area Governance Manager dated 31st July 2012 
– submitted) 
 

 5. COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 

  (a) GRANTS TO THIRD SECTOR 2012/13 
 

   Eight Third-Sector Grant Applications were presented for consideration 
 
Decision 
 

1. Noted the remaining Bute and Cowal Third Sector Grant budget 
of £7524 for the financial year 2012/ 2013. 

 
2. The Third Sector Grants  were determined as follows:- 

 
 Third Sector Grants Project 

Costs 
Grant 
Awarded 

3.1 Bute Bowling Association £2,359 £250 

3.2 Cowal Music Club £4,610 £450 

3.3 Girl Guiding Argyll £4,520 £130 

3.4 Pass It On £12,400 £3,840 

3.5 Port Bannatyne Golf Club £198 £99 

3.6 RSCDS South Argyll Branch £720 £180 

3.7 The Rustle Way Foundation 

£5,000 

£1,920* 
subject to the 
receipt of 
satisfactory 
financial 

information 
from the 
Group 

3.8 Transclyde Music £1,764 £655 
 

3. Agreed to note the operation of the Bute Youth Project with 
regard to their Third Sector grant application approved on 6th 
June 2012. 

 
(Reference: Report by the Community Development Manager dated 17th 
July 2012 – submitted) 
 

Page 2



  (b) THIRD SECTOR GRANTS - DUNOON MOD 2011/12 
 

   The Social Economy Development Officer spoke on the Third Sector Grant 
awarded to the Dunoon Mod in April 2011. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee agreed to carry forward the balance of the Third Sector 
Grant funding in the financial period 2011/12 to be spent prior to the Mod 
taking place in October 2012. 
 
(Reference: Report by the Community Development Manager dated 30th 
July 2012 – submitted) 
 
 

 6. DEVELOPMENT & INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES 
 

  (a) VERBAL REPORT ON THE MILTON BURN FLOOD PREVENTION 
SCHEME 

 
   Members heard a verbal update from the Governance Manager on the 

Milton Burn Flood Prevention Scheme. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee noted the details provided. 
 

  (b) GRASS CUTTING ROAD SIDE VERGES 
 

   Members heard from the Service Officer on the progress regarding grass 
cutting operations in the Bute and Cowal area regarding roadside verges and 
amenity areas. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee:- 
 

1. Noted the works already completed and the programme in place to 
attend to the remainder for rural roads 

 
2. Noted the amenity grassland maintenance programme.  

 

(Reference: Report by the Executive Director of Development and 
Infrastructure Services dated 20th July 2012 - submitted) 
 
 

  (c) JAPANESE KNOTWEED CONTROL BUTE & COWAL AREA 
 

   Members heard from the Service Officer on the Japanese Knotweed 
Control Demonstration project commenced on August 2010 with a number 
of sites in Bute & Cowal identified by members as priority in their area. 
 
Decision 

Page 3



 
1. Agreed to note  the contents of the report  

 
2.  To note the officer’s amendment to para. 4.4 of the report to remove 

the wording “and purchase of chemicals”. 
 

3. To instruct the officer to submit report on results of sprayed areas to 
October Area Committee. 

 
(Reference: Report by the Executive Director of Development and 
Infrastructure Services dated 23rd July 2012 - submitted) 
 
 

  (d) PROVISION OF BOLLARDS, RESTRICTION OF VEHICLE ACCESS TO 
ROTHESAY ESPLANADE AND DUNOON PARADE 

 
   Members heard from the Roads Performance Manager, East on the 

introduction of lockable bollards to limit vehicular access at Rothesay 
Esplanade and Victoria Parade, Dunoon, to authorised users only.  
 
Decision 
 
The Committee agreed:- 
 

1. To approve the installation of removable bollards on Rothesay 
Esplanade. 

 
2. To defer consideration of the installation of removable bollards 

on Victoria Parade, Dunoon to the October Area Committee to 
allow safety issues to be addressed. 

 
(Reference: Report by the Executive Director of Development and 
Infrastructure Services dated 23rd July 2012 - submitted) 
 
 

  (e) ROADS CAPITAL RECONSTRUCTION PROGRAMME 
 

   Member heard from the Roads Performance Manager, East on the changes 
made to the Capital Roads Reconstruction Budget 2012/13. 
 
Decision 
 
Agreed to note the verbal update by the Roads Performance Manager  
 
Councillor Bruce Marshall left the meeting at 11.50am 
 

 7. PUBLIC & COUNCILLOR QUESTION TIME 
 

  There were no questions from the Public or from Councillors. 
 

 8. EXEMPT ITEMS 
 

 The Committee resolved in terms of Section 50(A)(4) of the Local Government 

Page 4



(Scotland) Act 1973, to exclude the public for the following items of business on the 
grounds that it was likely to involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
Paragraphs 6 & 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 7A to the Local Government (Scotland) Act 
1973. 
 
 

  (a) FORMER COWAL TOY LIBRARY, 60 ARDENSLATE ROAD, DUNOON 
 

   Members heard from the Estate Surveyor on the offer received in 
respect of the former Cowal Toy Library, 60 Ardenslate Road, Dunoon 
which was recently advertised for sale. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee agreed with the recommendations contained in the 
report by the Executive Director of Customer Services, subject to the 
amendment to para. 4.3 that any planning application should be 
applied for within a period of six months. 
 
(Reference: Report by the Executive Director of Customer Services 
dated 19th July 2012 – submitted) 
 

  (b) SALE OF LAND AT DUNCLUTHA, DUNOON 
 

   Members heard an update from the Legal Services Manager on the sale of 
land at Dunclutha, Dunoon. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee agreed with the recommendations contained in the report 
by the Executive Director of Customer Services. 
 
(Reference: Report by the Executive Director of Customer Services dated 
12th July 2012 - submitted) 
 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 
ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL  BUTE AND COWAL 

 AREA COMMITTEE            
                                                    

              
2 October 2012  

________________________________________________________________ 
 
 AREA COMMITTEE MEETING CYCLE. 
_______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
1.0 SUMMARY 
 

1.1 This report outlines the proposed cycle of meetings for the Bute and Cowal 
Area Committee from October 2012 until March 2013.  

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 

2.1 Members are asked to agree the outlined cycle of Area Committee,   
Committee Planning Group and Business Day meetings as detailed below. 

 
  

3.0 DETAIL 
 

3.1 Bute and Cowal Area Committee will continue with the agreed cycle of 
meetings, such that Area Committees will take place on the morning of the 
1st  Tuesday of October, December and February.   

 
Community Planning Group meetings will take place quarterly, in the 
afternoon of the first Tuesday in December and March. 
 
Business meetings will take place in the morning of the first Tuesday of 
November, January and March. 
 
Pre agenda briefings will take place two weeks before the Area Committee 
/CPG meeting. The cycle of meeting dates is detailed below 

 
 

 
4.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 

Policy:    None 
Financial:  None 
Personnel:   None 
Equal Opportunities: None 

 
For further information contact: Shirley MacLeod, Area Governance Manager 01369 707134 
 
Date:    29 August 2012 

Agenda Item 6aPage 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



B & C MEETING CYCLE – 2012/2013 
 
 

Pre Agenda 
Issue 

Pre Agenda 
Briefing 

LACPG 
Agenda Issue 

AC/BD Agenda 
Issue 

Area 
Committee  

CPG 
Meeting 

Business 
Day Meeting 

Venue 

        

  After 22 Aug Tue 28 Aug  Tue 4 Sep Tue 4 Sep Dunoon 

        

Tue 11 Sept Tue 18 Sept  Tue 25 Sept Tue 2 Oct   Dunoon 

        

   Tue 30 Oct   Tue 6 Nov Rothesay 

        

Tue 13 Nov  Tue 20 Nov Tue 6 Nov Tue 27 Nov Tue 4 Dec Tue 4 Dec  Rothesay 

        

   Tues 11 Dec   Tues 8 Jan Dunoon 

        

Tues 15 Jan Tues 22 Jan  Tues 29 Jan  Tues 5 Feb   Dunoon 

        

   Tues 26 Feb   Tues 5 Mar Dunoon 

        

Tues 7 Jan Tues 15 Jan Tues 5 Feb   Tues 5 Mar  Dunoon 

        

        

 

P
a
g
e
 9



P
a

g
e
 1

0

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\4\4\AI00068449\ButeandCowalAreaCommittee2013to2014and2014to20150.docm 1 

 
ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL BUTE AND COWAL 
COMMUNITY SERVICES: EDUCATION AREA COMMITTEE 
 2ND OCTOBER 2012  
           
 
 
SCHOOL HOLIDAYS AND IN SERVICE DAYS: 2013/2014 and 2014/2015 
 
 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
 1.1 The Executive at its meeting on 2 February 2012 agreed the 

framework of main holiday dates for schools in 2013/2014 and 
2014/2015. 

   
 1.2 These dates were then circulated to schools to consider the 

remaining inservice days and occasional days. 
   
 1.3 The final patterns of inservice days and school holidays have 

now been identified for all schools in Bute and Cowal and these 
are outlined in Appendices 1 to 4 attached to this paper. 

 
 
2.  RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 2.1 Members are asked to endorse the final patterns of school 

holidays and inservice days for all schools in Bute and Cowal as 
outlined in Appendices 1 to 4. 

   
 2.2 Members are asked to agree that the details of school 

holidays and inservice days for 2013/2014 and 2014/2015 
should now be circulated to schools and all relevant 
organisations. 

   
3.  DETAIL 
 
 3.1 The Executive at its meeting on 2 February 2012 agreed the 

main framework of school holiday dates for Session 2013/2014 
and 2014/2015. 

   
 3.2 This framework was circulated to all schools.  Head 

teachers/campus principals were consulted about the five 
inservice days and the five occasional day’s holidays which were 
to be incorporated into the agreed framework of holiday dates.   

 
 3.3 As part of the process head teachers/campus principals were 

asked to consult with other schools with the aim of achieving a 
consistent pattern of inservice days and occasional day’s 
holidays in their area. 

Agenda Item 7bPage 11



 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\4\4\AI00068449\ButeandCowalAreaCommittee2013to2014and2014to20150.docm 2 

   
 3.4 Following this consultation, responses from head 

teachers/campus principals were submitted to Argyll House and 
the final patterns of inservice days and school holidays were 
collated for consideration and endorsement by local committees. 

   
 3.5 The patterns of inservice days and school holidays for all schools 

in Bute and Cowal for school session 2013/2014 and 2014/2015 
are outlined in Appendices 1 to 4 attached to this paper. 

   
4. CONCLUSION 
 
 4.1 Following consultation with head teachers/campus principals 

about the incorporation of inservice days and occasional days 
holidays into the framework of main holiday dates agreed by the 
Executive Committee, the pattern of school holidays for 
2013/2014 and 2014/2015 have now been identified. 

   
 
5.  IMPLICATIONS 
 
 5.1  Policy   None  
 

 5.2  Financial  None 
 

 5.3  Legal   None 
 

 5.4  HR   None 
 

 5.5  Equalities None 
 
 5.6  Risk  None 
 
 5.7  Customer Service Customers/Clients need to know school  
      holiday dates in advance for planning 
      purposes 

Page 12



 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\4\4\AI00068449\ButeandCowalAreaCommittee2013to2014and2014to20150.docm 3 

 
6. APPENDICES 
 
 6.1 School Holidays (Cowal) 2013/2014 
 
 6.2 School Holidays (Bute) 2013/2014 
 
 6.3 School Holidays (Cowal) 2014/2015 
 
 6.2 School Holidays (Bute) 2014/2015 
 
 
 
 
Cleland Sneddon 
Executive Director, Community Services 
August 2012 
 
 
 
For further information contact: Carol Evans, Head of Education, Oban 
Education Office, Dalintart Drive, Oban, Argyll PA34 4EF.  Tel: 01631 564908 

Page 13



 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\4\4\AI00068449\ButeandCowalAreaCommittee2013to2014and2014to20150.docm 4 

 

APPENDIX 6.1 
 

 

COMMUNITY SERVICES:  EDUCATION 
SCHOOL HOLIDAYS AND IN SERVICE DAYS 2013/2014 

 

 

COWAL 
 

Dunoon Grammar  Sandbank Primary  Dunoon Primary 
Strachur Primary  Innellan Primary  Strone Primary 
Kilmodan Primary   St Mun’s Primary  Kirn Primary 
Tighnabruaich Primary Lochgoilhead Primary Toward Primary 
 
 

TERM 1  

13 August 2013 In-service day 

14 August 2013 Pupils return 

29 August 2013 School closes 

30 August 2013 In-service day 

2 September 2013 School re-opens 

04 October 2013 School closes 

21 October 2013 School re-opens 

20 December 2013 School closes 

 
 
 

TERM 2  

06 January 2014 School re-opens 

13 February 2014 School closes 

18 and 19 February 2014 In-service days 

20 February 2014 School re-opens 

04 April 2014  Easter Holidays School closes 

 
 
 

TERM 3  

22 April 2014 School re-opens 

01 May 2014 School closes 

02 May 2014 In-service day 

06 May 2014 School re-opens 

27 June 2014 School closes 

 
 

Page 14



 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\4\4\AI00068449\ButeandCowalAreaCommittee2013to2014and2014to20150.docm 5 

APPENDIX 6.2 
COMMUNITY SERVICES:  EDUCATION 

SCHOOL HOLIDAYS AND IN SERVICE DAYS 2013/2014 
 

BUTE 
 

Rothesay Joint Campus (Rothesay Academy and Rothesay Primary) 
North Bute Primary      
St Andrew’s Primary 
 
 

TERM 1  

13 August 2013 In-service day 

14 August 2013 Pupils return 

04 October 2013 School closes 

21 October 2013 School re-opens 

13 November 2013 School closes 

14 and 15 November 2013 In-service days 

18 November 2013 School re-opens 

20 December 2013 School closes 

 
 
 

TERM 2  

06 January 2014 School re-opens 

11 February 2014 School closes 

12 and 13 February 2014 In-service days 

18 February 2014 School re-opens 

04 April 2014 Easter Holidays School closes 

 
 
 

TERM 3  

22 April 2014 School re-opens 

02 May 2014 School closes 

06 May 2014 School re-opens 

27 June 2014 School closes 

 
 

Page 15



 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\4\4\AI00068449\ButeandCowalAreaCommittee2013to2014and2014to20150.docm 6 

APPENDIX 6.3 
 

COMMUNITY SERVICES:  EDUCATION 
 

SCHOOL HOLIDAYS AND IN SERVICE DAYS 2014/2015 
 

 

COWAL 
 

Dunoon Grammar  Sandbank Primary  Dunoon Primary 
Strachur Primary  Innellan Primary  Strone Primary 
Kilmodan Primary   St Mun’s Primary  Kirn Primary 
Tighnabruaich Primary Lochgoilhead Primary Toward Primary 
 
 

TERM 1  

12 August 2014 In-service day 

13 August 2014 Pupils return 

28 August 2014 School closes 

29 August 2014 In-service day 

01 September 2014 School re-opens 

03 October 2014 School closes 

20 October 2014 School re-opens 

19 December 2014 School closes 

 
 
 

TERM 2  

05 January 2015 School re-opens 

12 February 2015 School closes 

17 and 18 February 2015 In-service days 

19 February 2015 School re-opens 

2 April 2015  Easter Holidays School closes 

 
 
 

TERM 3  

20 April 2015 School re-opens 

30 April 2015 School closes 

01 May 2015 In-service day 

05 May 2015 School re-opens 

26 June 2015 School closes 

 

Page 16



 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\4\4\AI00068449\ButeandCowalAreaCommittee2013to2014and2014to20150.docm 7 

APPENDIX 6.4 
COMMUNITY SERVICES:  EDUCATION 

SCHOOL HOLIDAYS AND IN SERVICE DAYS 2014/2015 
 

BUTE 
 

Rothesay Joint Campus (Rothesay Academy and Rothesay Primary) 
North Bute Primary      
St Andrew’s Primary 
 
 

TERM 1  

12 August 2014 In-service day 

13 August 2014 Pupils return 

03 October 2014 School closes 

20 October 2014 School re-opens 

12 November 2014 School closes 

13 and 14 November 2014 In-service days 

17 November 2014 School re-opens 

19 December 2014 School closes 

 
 
 

TERM 2  

05 January 2015 School re-opens 

10 February 2015 School closes 

11 and 12 February 2015 In-service days 

17 February 2015 School re-opens 

02 April 2015 Easter Holidays School closes 

 
 
 

TERM 3  

20 April 2015 School re-opens 

01 May 2015 School closes 

05 May 2015 School re-opens 

26 June 2015 School closes 

 

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Dunoon Grammar School 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 Standards and Quality Report 

 
 

Session 2011-12 
 

 
 
 
 

A
g
e
n

d
a
 Ite

m
 7

c
P

a
g
e
 1

9



Foreword 

 

As headteacher, it is my pleasure to present the Standards and Quality Report for Session 2010-11.  I hope that in reading it you will appreciate 

that much is being done to develop our young people to become successful learners, confident individuals, effective contributors and responsible 

citizens. This session has once again been a very busy one for staff and pupils and this report reflects the hard work of all within the school. I am 

again very impressed by the maturity and politeness of the vast majority of our pupils and the positive relationships existing between staff and 

pupils. I would like to take this opportunity to publicly acknowledge my gratitude to staff, parents/carers and pupils for all that they do to ensure 

that the good name of Dunoon Grammar School is maintained and enhanced within our community and further afield.   

The report follows the format of HMIe reports. 

 

W Stewart Shaw 

 

 

 

Purpose 

 

This report, on the Standards and Quality of the work within Dunoon Grammar School, informs the reader about the school’s major activities, 

achievements and key priorities overtaken in session 2011-12. It also lists the improvement priorities for session 2012-13. 

 

 

 

How evidence was gathered 

 

Evidence for this report has been gathered from various sour 

• The school improvement plan 

• Published statistical information 

• Internal school evaluations 

• Departmental Standards and Quality Reports, 

 

 

 

 

P
a

g
e
 2

0



 

 

 

 

1. The School 
 
Dunoon Grammar School is a non-denominational secondary school which serves the Cowal Peninsula. It takes pupils from our 11 
partner primaries: Dunoon, Kirn, St Muns, Sandbank, Strone, Lochgoilhead, Strachur, Kilmodan, Tighnabruaich, Innellan and 
Toward. In September 2010  the school roll was 890. 
For session 2011-12 the teaching complement was 63.5 full time equivalent. There is support staff comprising teachers from the 
Authority Support Team, administration and clerical staff, technicians, librarian, classroom assistants and Additional Support 
Needs(ASN) assistants.  
 
2. Impact of Last Year’s Improvement Plan 
 
Priority 1  Development of Curriculum for Excellence 
 
Departments continued to develop courses within the broad general education. 
Some departments fundamentally redesigned their S1/2 courses, whereas others amended their existing courses and teaching 
methodologies to reflect the principles and practices of curriculum for excellence. 
Some new interdisciplinary studies were developed but a significant number of departments still need to develop interdisciplinary 
learning. 
We have yet to produce our S2 Curriculum wall and to use both S1/S2 walls to establish a map of permeating themes to ensure 
that all departments are contributing to the development of literacy, numeracy and health and well-being. 
 
Priority 2  Learning & Teaching 
 
During the session we introduced target-setting interviews for all S5 pupils where members of the Senior Leadership Team and 
Heads of House met with pupils and parents to set targets for their SQA exams. 
We introduced a system of texting to alert parents when pupils were not performing to expectations e.g. not doing homework or 
passing NABS. 
The number of pupils gaining 3+ Highers has risen. 

P
a
g
e
 2

1



With the local authority allowing the use of You Tube there has been a marked increase in the use of ICT to enhance learning 
throughout the school. 
Several CPD sessions were organised to enhance staff skills.   
Following S4 prelims pupils who had the potential of gaining credit awards were identified, and interviewed with parents to 
encourage them to engage in more effective learning strategies.  Information was passed back to teachers asking them to 
particularly focus on supporting these pupils with their revision. 
Easter study classes were re-introduced. 
A parent information evening on Study Skills for S3/4 pupils was reasonably well-attended.  A study skills and exam preparation 
event on a Saturday morning was poorly attended. 
Within House Time all pupils worked on a unit on how to raise their attainment. 
House teachers engaged young people in tracking interviews where they discussed their learning. 
We introduced a new format of reporting to parents in S1 where house teachers met with pupil and parent to discuss learning and 
achievement across the curriculum.  This resulted in much higher parental involvement. 
An increasing number of staff are employing cooperative learning techniques but this has to be more consistently employed across 
the school. 
Staff made a good start to developing new national 3,4,5 courses.  This work is ongoing. 
In consultation with pupils, parents and staff we agreed to continue to give pupils their options in S2.  This is an interim situation 
and will be kept under review as CfE models develop. 
The school continues to develop effective based partnerships to enhance the learning of your people.  The Performing Arts 
department worked with Strathclyde Police, Social Work, Church of Scotland and NHS to produce a DVD to deal with Drugs and 
Alcohol Abuse. 
The technical department worked with pupils from Kirn primary school, developing positive links and curricular continuity. 
The number of skills for work courses increased and we are able to offer hairdressing in our newly formed hairdressing salon. 
The PE department deployed pupils studying the Sports Leader award in primary schools to support their PE programme. 
The school did not make good progress on the development of Literacy, Numeracy and Health and Well-being as the responsibility 
of all teachers. 
The school is making good progress in identifying pupil opportunities for personal achievements.  Recognition of personal 
achievement formed  part of the S1 parents reporting meeting.  The House merit system rewarded personal achievement.  
Members of staff have been involved in the authority development of Skillsbook: a piece of software to record pupils’ skills 
development and personal achievement. 
The application of Assessment is for Learning  technique is still too inconsistent across the school. 
 

P
a

g
e
 2

2



Priority 3 Self Evaluation 
 
As a result of the school’s involvement is the new local authority partnership review we developed and piloted a new system of 
reviewing the work of departments.  This has led to a greater focus on learning and teaching and action planning towards 
improvement. 
 
 
Priority 4 Pupil Support 
There has been good progress in the development of a vertical guidance and tutor system.  Guidance staff produced a vertical 
programme of activities and pupil evaluation of the new system was generally positive.  Staff have begun the process of regular 
pupil interviews but this requires further development. 
The process of staged intervention for both learning and behaviour is becoming more embedded in the ethos of the school. 
Staff have received training to support the introduction of individual interviews and parental report meetings. 
 
 
 
 
Priority 5 Leadership 
 
The leadership capacity of the school has materially improved during this session.  Several staff led by the good example set by  
our Heads of House have led initiatives as part of the House activities programme. 
We have developed a cause leading to the SQA qualifications in Leadership for our S5 pupils. 
The new house system has increased the opportunities for pupils to engage in leadership activities. 
Limited developments of School Council and House Councils have helped develop the pupil voice, but more requires to be done.  
However, the school council has improved the ethos of the school through the purchase of new tables for the forum and the 
development of a new queuing system for lunches. 
The school has made good progress in the delivery of opportunities for all. 
We have development curriculum flexibility in our senior phase by increasing the number of skills for work courses, the delivery of 
Open University YASS courses; delivery of Advanced Higher Geography from Oban High School, development of Youth Volunteer 
Award course in partnership with CLD.(Community Learning Development) 
We have been actively involved in the development of Skills for Learning, Life and Work. 
We have engaged fully in the 16+ Learning Choices initiative. 

P
a
g
e
 2

3



The school is improving communications with parents through an improved use of the website, twitter, texting and our new e-
newsletter. 
Improvements to internal communications include the new Head Teacher’s bulletin and displaying pupil notices on television 
screens in the forum and on a pupil noticeboard in the forum. 
 
3. Particular Strengths of Departments indicated by Principal Teachers  
 
The school has many hard working enthusiastic teachers who are committed to teaching and learning of their subjects and to the 
young people of Dunoon Grammar School. 
 
All Departments/Faculties compile a Departmental Standards and Quality report annually. This report is based on a selection of 
comments from these reports. 
 
Modern  Languages 

• Teamwork and sharing of ideas. 

• Culture of self-improvement and reflection. 

• Use of ICT and readiness to try new ideas. 

• Links outwith school – Exchanges, foreign native adults helping, guest speakers etc. 
Business and Computing 

• Extra-curricular provision – innovative approaches to learning outwith the formal timetable. Pupils have several creative 
forums to further develop skills and knowledge. 

• Profile of school – extra-curricular projects have gained wide ranging exposure in local and national press and media, as well 
as being used by Education Scotland to illustrate learning and teaching. E-newsletter produced by faculty disseminated 
weekly to stakeholders offers opportunity to celebrate pupils’ successes and showcase their talents. 

Geography 

• The department has been consolidating cooperative learning and a variety of pedagogical learning styles, and is integrating 
them throughout their courses. 

History/Modern Studies  

• Consistent use of AiFL strategies within Dept. class teaching including     
              the aim to move towards  electronic Learning Intentions and Success Criteria for all courses. 

• Department is moving towards a change in pedagogy making learning & teaching more active. 

• Staff Commitment to the use of ICT. 

P
a

g
e
 2

4



• Excellent use of  S1-S2 self evaluation undertaken with a large majority of our pupils providing extremely positive responses. 

 
Religious Moral and Philosophical Studies 

• The Department has been consolidating cooperative learning and a variety of pedagogical learning styles, and are 
integrating them throughout their courses. 

• Work on relationships and building rapport with pupils evidenced in the polldaddy survey. 

•  An effective reward and consequence scheme in place, which reinforces a strong behavior management practice. 
 

English   

• Emphasis placed on the development of skills. 

• Successful implementation of aspects of co-operative learning. 

• Development of new resources at all levels. 

• Corridor displays. 

• Inclusion of interdisciplinary learning in some CfE courses. 

• Effective use of ICT to enhance teaching and learning. 

• Use of Personal Learning Plans.  
 
Art & Design 

• P7 Teachers’ Workshop cascading painting techniques within curriculum- resulting in related P7 Linking Units produced & 
displayed during OTM and P7 parents’ visit 

• S1/S2 opting for individually driven IT based unit (Book Cover) 

• Staff visiting Art departments in other schools (Govan High) to observe good practice and methodology.  

• Robust targeted pupil policy aimed towards better attainment and achievement (lunchtime & after school sessions) 

• Use of sketchbooks in context with Homework Policy – very successful across all levels 

• Continue using co-operative learning as a regularly applied methodology across the dept’s classroom 
 
Mathematics 

• Big commitment to the use of ICT. 

• Excellent additional in-house resources which supplement our courses. 

• Department takes part in the ‘Enterprising Mathematics’ competition. 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

5



PE 

• Very high expectations of every pupil in relation to the effort and positive attitude required to succeed which contributes to 
the excellent work ethic throughout the department 

• Cooperative Learning episodes are increasing every year to engage learners and raise attainment 

• Range of activities and experiences on offer to appeal to all pupils 
 

 

Design & Technology 

• Commitment from all departmental staff to improving students’ learning and attainment (including commitment to after school 
and lunchtime supported study and developing units and courses.) 

 

• Integrated use of ICT in teaching and learning across all Design & Technology subjects. 
 

• Development of engaging and challenging units of project based learning where students can development confidence in a 
variety of practical and more general skills. Courses foster creativity and problem solving abilities. 

 

• High standards of achievement set as well as high expectations of behaviour and effort from our students. Strong desire and 
willingness to uphold standards in our department and whole school. 

 

• Extensive knowledge and skills base of our departmental staff regularly shared to add to the professional development of 
each other. 

 
 
 
4. Examples of Good Practice 
Modern Languages  

• Primary/ Secondary transition work:  Sought out best practice nationally.  Examined several “showcase” transition projects and 
visited the school which seemed to have the best model.  Built further on last session’s dialogue with primary partners.  Agreed 
a programme of teaching for primaries to promote greater consistency in French across all schools.  Further liaison meeting 
took place at Feb in-service followed by In-Service session in June 2012, led by a local primary French practitioner who has 
gained national recognition.  Communicated with all primary headteachers face-to-face at meeting and involved them in 
communications, as part of our drive to raise the profile of language-learning among partner primaries. 

P
a

g
e
 2

6



• Success of German Exchange continues.  Currently building a new French Exchange which we hope will include more pupils 
than the last. 

• Increasing use of music, video clips and real up-to-date content to engage learners through use of YouTube and other sources.  
Resources are catalogued on dedicated electronic folders and ordered by page number.  Each resource corresponds to a page 
number of the course book – it is easy to access resources, and colleagues can easily borrow the resources of others.  

• Languages Conference – mostly aimed at S2.  This shows the real-life relevance and advantages of learning a foreign 
language, and involves several guest speakers from industry, university and other backgrounds.  

 
Business and Computing  

• Moderation Feedback – Intermediate 2 Computing feedback: “The Centre is commended on the introduction of a 
comprehensive internal verification system. This practice should be continued”. 

• DGS TV – work has been carried by BBC, STV news,  Daily Mail, Daily Express and other local and national media publishers 

• National contribution – staff have been proactive members on Qualification Design Teams for new Administration & IT courses 
and Business & Business Management courses. Staff have also produced national materials for these new courses for SQA 
and Education Scotland. 

• BBC Comedy – pupils attended an exclusive BBC comedy workshop at the Edinburgh Festival in August. Pupils delivered a 
wide range of performances, including songs, sketches and stand-up. Pupils also interviewed TV comic Ed Byrne. Footage is on 
the BBC website. 

• BBC Nature – following on from the success of Seaside Stories’ broadcast on BBC 2 last year, a group of S1-S3 pupils worked 
with the BBC to write, film, present, edit and produce a documentary on nature in Cowal. This film is on the BBC website. 

• HRH Prince Edward was very impressed with the work of pupils in the department during their visit to the school. His equerry 
Alistair Bruce of Cromlech – who has worked on productions such as Downton and the King’s Speech – emailed the school to 
share this feedback. 

• Walter Sinclair Smith, a remembrance movie produced in conjunction with S4 History pupils achieved widespread acclaim. 
Pupils involved uncovered the remarkable story of an ex-pupil of the school who was tragically killed during the iconic Christmas 
Truce of 1914. The film produced was subject to positive publicity from a range of national newspapers as well as being a main 
feature of the national six o’clock news on STV. The movie has received an award from PoppyScotland and can be viewed on 
their website. 

• We Will Rock You. Significant contribution from faculty staff on all aspects of the fantastic school production – from show 
director and producer, to advertising sales and programme design and production. Staff attended nightly to co-ordinate 
refreshment/tuck shop/merchandise sales. 

Geography 

P
a
g
e
 2

7



• In Geography the department is teaching more practical applications, eg the S2 course now involves studying the impact of 
earthquakes on buildings and landscapes, including pupils constructing a model seismograph.   

• In the S3 course there are opportunities for project based work when looking at issues such as Glasgow, and China’s One 
Child Policy to give the pupils a deeper understanding of material being covered. 
 

History/Modern Studies 

• A wide variety of  differentiated  material produced  for use in our new S1/S2 History and Modern Studies CfE courses. 

• Excellent use of AifL strategies by all members in the Department. Well on the way to having electronic ILO’s; Targets and 
Success Criteria being displayed for each lesson taught from S1-S6. 

• New Cooperative  Learning exercises and pupil investigations have been introduced into our S1 and S2 History and Modern  
Studies courses this year to meet the new Curriculum for Excellence guidelines. Pupil choice has also been introduced 
where  appropriate. 

• Electronic copy of coursework on CD available for use by our S4 History students. 
 
RMPS 

• We had a team of people from local churches led by Rev Andrew Swift sharing the Christmas and Easter Experience with all 
pupils in S1; this was a kinesthetic learning experience that also met the Spiritual side of holistic health and wellbeing. 

• We tied in the Key Christian Beliefs S1 course to the Gideon Society assembly as led by S Clark. 
 
English 

• Focusing on teaching and learning at Departmental Meetings. 

• Cross curricular links with History, RMPS and Science Departments. 

• Interdisciplinary learning initiatives. 

• Use of collaborative skills within the classroom setting. 

• Effective use of a wide range of texts to enhance teaching and learning. 

• Individualised Reading Programme for S2 pupils. 

• Individualised Spelling Programme for all year groups. 

• High profile given to good practice in Department Displays. 

• Enjoyment and choice within course structures. 

• Tailoring teaching strategies and texts in all classes to meet pupils’ needs. 

• Effective use of AifL within the classroom setting.   

P
a

g
e
 2

8



• Creation of a new school magazine – ak’sent. 
Art 

• Continued success of P7 Linking Unit initiative with all Associated Primaries. P7 Teachers’ Workshop cascaded painting 
techniques and artists’ study - application within curriculum resulting in related P7 Linking Units produced. 

• Use of Cooperative Learning – especially at S1 / S2 level. 

• Staff visiting other Art departments to observe examples of good practice and methodology.  

• Effective use of Cross Assessment throughout the year – resulting in detailed response to parents 

• Robust targeted pupil policy aimed towards better attainment and achievement (lunchtime & after school sessions) 

• Continue using co-operative learning as a regularly applied methodology across the dept’s classrooms 

• Assessment of our good practice being highlighted by visits of both Rothesay and Campbeltown Art departments. 
 
Maths 

• Department are teaching ‘mixed ability’ S1/S2 classes. 

• Excellent additional in-house learning & teaching resources at many levels. 

• Excellent in-house revision resources at all levels in S3 to S6.  

• Excellent teaching notes/resources in particular at ‘Higher’ level.  
 
PE/HE 
 

• Promoting Positive Behaviour S1 & S2 Pilot Programme in PE 
Continuation of S1 & S2 Merit System that enabled pupils to build up points over each 6-week block.  Focus was given to 
behaviour and effort (10 points), always having PE kit (10 points) and submitting homework on time and to the best of their ability 
(10 points).   

The class with the best average gained access to the day out to Hunter’s Quay.  This initiative continues to be a big success 
with pupils buying into the scheme and being eager not to let their classmates down by losing merit points for forgetting PE 
kit etc. 
Pupils who received three lots of the maximum 30 points received a Commendation letter home, praising their efforts.  This 
was very well received by parents. 

• Revision Past Paper CD-Rom 
Building on from the previous success of our Standard Grade CD Rom, the PE department created an Intermediate 1 and 
Intermediate 2 CD Rom to help raise attainment.  The Higher version will be developed next year. 

P
a
g
e
 2

9



o HE:  
S2 further develops pupils’ awareness for a healthier lifestyle in the 21st  Century and the need for us all to make informed 
choices about our diet. Several assessments through peer and teacher observation take place, along with projects through 
Sainsbury’s Active Kids Get Cooking scheme (AKGC). 

 

• Pupils gained confidence and have experience in a wider field when they have demonstrations both at school and on public 
visits to Glasgow City College and James Watt College.  

Performing Arts 

• Extra Curricular Activities which raise the profile of the school in the wider community. 

• Numerous visits to local Residential homes and hotels with choirs and vocal groups. 

• Builds self confidence. 

• Very good links with Community partners – demonstrated in particular with the film project in conjunction with Strathclyde 
Police, Social Work and NHS and days for S1 and 2. 

• Encourages lifelong learning. 
Science 

• Our department has embraced the techniques learned in the co-operative learning academy and many co-operative 
techniques have now been written into our new national 4 and 5 courses. 

• The department make use of a range of Aifl techniques including traffic-lighting, show-me boards, acti-votes and peer 
assessment. 

• The department recognises the importance of evaluating learning resources and have already evaluated and acted on 
feedback related to the new S1 and 2 cfe courses. 

Design & Technology 

• Introducing more integrated learning with projects combining skills from across a range of technology disciplines and allowing students 

to apply skills to new contexts.  

 

• Regular consultation between the teachers delivering each course or with colleagues who previously delivered the course to share 

information, methodology, strategies and standards. 

 

• Regular supported study sessions run and departmental staff always available to students spending additional time in the department to 

improve their learning and advance their coursework 

 

P
a

g
e
 3

0



• Extensive joint and cross-marking of internally assessed work to share standards and ensure consistency for our students. Projects in 

Craft & Design and Practical Craft Skills are all assessed together by 2-3 members of staff, for example. 

 
5. Learning and Achievement 
 

Attainment 
S4 results  
5+ Level 3 results at 96% have risen by 9% and are at the highest level we have achieved over the last 8 years. 
5+ Level 4 results at 81% have risen by 5% and are the second highest results we have had over the last 8 years. These do not 
include Skills for work courses which are not yet to hand. 
5+ Level 5 results at 29% have fallen by 2% on last year’s figures which in turn had fallen by 3% on the previous year. This is 
indeed a worrying trend and has to be a continued focus for improvement for this year.  
The S5 results are disappointing in most measures with the exception of 3+ Highers which have shown an increasing trend from 
17% to 20% over the last 3 years. 5+ Highers at 6% are down by 1%, 1+ by 3%.  
Fewer pupils enhanced their level 3-5 performances than in previous years. 
 
Achievement 
 
All departments offer opportunities for our young people to extend their personal achievements 

• An inter-disciplinary venture titled “Walter Sinclair Smith” between History; English and   Business and Computing Departments 
saw Dunoon Grammar School reach the final of  Poppy Scotland’s national film competition. The film involved researching the 
true story of  an ex Grammar school pupil who fought in WW1 and was shot dead by an enemy sniper during the famous 
Christmas truce of 1914.  

 

• The Biology department enriched the curriculum by organizing a visit to London to visit the natural history and science 
museums as well as London zoo. As part of the trip, pupils were encouraged to organize a number of events to assist with 
the costs which they responded to very well-they organized a balloon race, bag-packing at Morrisons and the co-op, bake 
sale and a raffle. Their efforts managed to raise £2000 towards the cost of the trip. One of our pupils, had a report on the trip 
published in the local paper. 

• The introduction of a new school magazine (ak’sent) by a member of the English Department promoted writing skills. 

• Our S4 Chemistry pupils recently attended a practical day at the University of Strathclyde. 

• Our Physics department entered a team into a national Physics tournament at the Glasgow University. 

P
a
g
e
 3

1



• With support from the Physics department, Eilidh Oliphant successfully gained a place at space school and has since gone 
on to win a place on a trip to NASA. 

• Nursery Crhymes DVD produced in conjunction with our Performing Arts Department, Spirit Aid and other local partners, 
specifically Strathclyde Police and Health Board. This was a very successful project and involved 40 – 50 youngsters from all 
year groups. As well as developing confidence in the youngsters it also allowed them to work with students from other year 
groups and this has developed a strong support group amongst the students. 

• Our Young Musician Competition again produced a very high standard of entries and enthusiasm. 

• Senior Pupils’ work from The Art & Design department formed part of a local restaurant (Chatters) Summer Exhibition.  

• Greenpower Electric Car Schools Challenge 2012 - Mr E. Crofts and the Young Engineer’s Club participated in this event 
again this year, along with Mr J. Quirk, Mr C. Price and Mr T. Parker. 

• Through his good work with the Young Engineer’s Club, Mr Crofts was targeted to receive a ‘Makerbot’ and run a 3D printing 
project/challenge. (A Makerbot is a relatively cheap 3D printer that actually ‘prints out’ a 3D computer model in plastic by 
building it up in very thin layers.) 
A small group of our senior students took on the challenge to design and construct an item that would assist someone with 
physical difficulties to carry out an everyday task. They attended the ‘Celebration of Engineering & Science’ event at the 
SECC (in conjunction with the Scottish Council for Development and Industry and the Young Engineers & Science Clubs 
Scotland) for judging and to showcase their work.  
The group actually won 3rd prize in the 3D Design Challenge which was a fantastic result and this venture proved a very 
worthwhile and valuable experience for the students involved. 

• The school show “We will Rock You” played to large audiences over four evenings. Supported by staff from many 
departments this rich learning experience engaged many pupils in developing a whole range of skills. 

• Several pupils have achieved individual success in a wide range of sporting activities at local and national levels in 
swimming, badminton, sailing, football, fencing and rugby.  

• 80 pupils represented Dunoon Grammar School at the Argyll and Bute Youth games in Oban at a range of activities 
including; football, rugby, shinty, basketball, athletics, swimming and badminton. Dunoon Grammar was very successful in a 
number of areas but were noticeable winners of the Rugby, Tennis and individual  boy’s 800m. 
 

 
 

 
 
6.  Curriculum and Meeting Learning Needs 

P
a

g
e
 3

2



All departments have been developing their courses in line with Curriculum for Excellence. There is increasing use of 
cooperative learning and other active learning techniques. The school continues to offer a wide range of extra-curricular 
activities as illustrated by the PE Department which runs an extensive weekly extra-curricular programme consisting of 
activities such as football, badminton, basketball, gymnastics, cheerleading, fitness, shinty, short tennis, volleyball, rugby 
amongst others. The on-going work of the eco-schools committee has seen us develop our eco-garden which has been 
extensively used to deliver the curriculum to young people in the learning centre. Last term saw the implementation of an 
ASN PE group who received an extra period of quality, planned PE. This has been increased to three periods in session 
2012/13 
 
The provision of pupil support within the school was the focus of a review by the local authority. The report indicated the 
following strengths: 

• Provision for Additional Support Needs within the mainstream setting 

• A positive ethos and atmosphere within the Support Department and the wider school 

• Learning experiences within mainstream subjects for pupils based mainly in the learning centre 

• Improvements in Universal Support resulting from the move to the House System 

• The positive impact of recent self evaluation activity undertaken by the Support System. 
 
 
The report identified the following areas for improvement: 

• A need to improve communication with parents and internally within the school 

• More effective use and monitoring of Support Plans 

• Improvements in support assistant deployment 

• More effective evaluation of support assistant timetabling. 
 
We reintroduced the Easter Revision School with many pupils taking up the offer of extra supported study by many 
departments. Many departments continue to offer supported study on a voluntary basis throughout the year.  
 
In order to meet the needs of our pupils we constantly review our course provision within the senior phase. We have 
introduced hairdressing and digital media studies to our portfolio of skills for work courses. We have developed a course on 
Leadership for our S5 pupils leading to an SQA award. A group of pupils undertook the Open University YASS courses. 
 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

3



7. Staff working with others to support young people’s learning 
A key design principle within Curriculum for Excellence is relevance which is greatly enhanced by enriching the curriculum through 
working with others. Departments continue to make excellent links to strengthen and deepen young people’s learning as illustrated 
by the examples below. 
Modern Languages 

• Link with IBM European Helpdesk, Greenock – French native speakers gave written replies to Int 2 French Writing task – a 
letter of application for a job – brought relevance, purpose and authenticity to what is normally just preparation for an exam. 

• Penpal schemes have multiplied this year.  These have grown on the back of exchanges with France and Germany.  Many 
classes now have a link.  In some cases, the penpal link is used to inform the aims of the teaching – each topic learned in class 
can be a focus for the next letter – e.g “tell your penpal” about your home, your school subjects, etc… 

• Inclusion of an increasing number of adults (of various ages) from our community and from overseas in our work with the pupils 
– 3 German students from Sandbank’s Life College worked in our classes this year.  A fourth (who worked with us in 2011) 
returned from Germany to do a student placement here.  Huge benefits in engaging pupils’ interests, and in preparing for 
speaking exams.  

Business & Computing 

• Advice to partner departments – partner departments regularly consult faculty staff for advice on use of ICT to enhance 
learning – eg online survey/questionnaires, etc 

• Faculty initiated CPD sessions have continued to support the delivery of ICT skills sharing sessions to staff during collegiate 
time. 

• Staff welcome the use of faculty ICT suites by other departments and regularly provide advice and guidance to facilitate such 
use. 

 
 
 
Geography 

• Visits from World Vision to highlight the work carried out by that charity and relating this to the Development and Health units 
of the Intermediate and Higher courses 

• Liaising with EnviroKirn and the GRAB Trust 

• Visiting speaker to talk to Higher and Advanced Higher pupils about proposed supermarket developments in Dunoon. 
 
History/Mod Studies 

P
a

g
e
 3

4



• Our Higher History & Modern Studies students attended National SQA Conferences in Paisley in March to build on their 
knowledge, essay and source handling  skills as well as tips on improving exam technique. 

• Palestinian visitors came to DGS to meet and talk to our S2 and S4 Modern Studies classes as well as pupils from RMPS 
about peace initiatives in the Middle East. 

• Lord George Foulkes Peer from the House of Lords spoke to Higher Modern Studies pupil. 

• A Christian Aid  visitor spoke to S4 Modern Studies pupils regarding voluntary aid to Third World countries. 
 

RMPS 

• A Christian visitor talked to S2 classes about drug addiction as part of their studies of Christians in action. 

• Clifford Moss, a Procurator Fiscal for Paisley came into the higher class to talk about crime and punishment. 

• Cy Price spoke to the Higher class pupils about Crime and Punishment from his time working in the Home Office. 

• Rev Paul Beautyman taught two lessons to S3 SG as part of their Incarnation Unit. 

• As mentioned earlier, Rev Andrew Swift brought in a team from a variety of local churches for the Easter Experience. 
 

Art  

• Photographer Craig McPherson visiting dept to talk and demonstrate to S2 pupils on successful photo techniques 

• S1 Mural Competition initiated by Swallow Café, Dunoon 

• Joint participation with Alan Ferguson (Youth Forum) on photography unit 
PE/HE 

• PE Department utilised local community coaches to assist with the delivery of particular activities such as Rugby, Shinty, 
Dance, DYFL and Pilates. 

• The Home Economics department again welcomed the Cook Bus to the school as part of the government’s drive to create a 
healthier Scotland. 

Science 

• In a bid to enhance the learning experience of young people studying MER, links have been made with Greenpeace, the 
Trossachs National Park,  

• The Chemistry and Physics departments have established links with Heriot Watt University in Edinburgh by arranging for 
lecturers to visit the school to talk to pupils studying their subjects about their field of interest. 

English 

• Friday Reading Group organised by the school librarian and member of the English Department. 
 

P
a
g
e
 3

5



 
 
8. Staff and Young People Improving their Community 
Led by members of the Science and Geography departments the Eco-club has had a number of successes this year including: 

o Successful enterprise projects involving growing and selling spring bulbs and Eco-friendly Christmas decorations.. 
o Growing vegetables from seed and planting in the school garden. 
o Improving the aesthetics of the school building by acquiring three planters (located in the quadrangle) and filling them 

with plants. 
o Planting many spring and summer bulbs on the school grounds. 
o Establishing an indoor and outdoor wormery. 
o Encouraging re-cycling and organizing a successful anti litter campaing. 
o Fund-raising enough money to pay for the construction of a shed. (In collaboration with the technical dept) 
o  Collecting over 2000 2L plastic bottles for the construction of a plastic bottle greenhouse. 

 
Business & Computing produced our new E-newsletter. The weekly email newsletter produced by the faculty has been viewed by 
over 10,000 recipients. The newsletter shares good news stories about the achievement of our pupils to a wide selection of 
stakeholders. 

. 
Our S2 History and English Department joint interdisciplinary venture using WW2 submarine interactive lessons. 

 
Within RMPS a variety of pupils within the Higher and Standard Grade classes who attend local churches have been encouraged to 
get involved within their local churches. For example one pupil started to get involved with her local churches Sunday school; and 
S1 have been encouraged to show charity through acts of service to their family, community and environment for example by 
reducing their littering. 
 
S5/6 Sports Leaders have led a range of extra-curricular activities throughout the year including Shinty, Football, Badminton and 
Cheerleading as well as delivering a number of extra-curricular activities at St Munn’s primary school  
DGS pipe band once again thrilled the international delegates at the Scottish Learning Festival reception, this year held in the 
impressive Peoples’ Palace, Glasgow. 
The Performing Arts department agin produced a most enjoyable pantomime raising wnough money to purchase a new xzylophone 
for the department. 
 

P
a

g
e
 3

6



9. High expectations of All Young People. 
Most staff have high expectations for pupils and from S3 onwards set aspirational grade targets using CAT scores as a minimum 
baseline.  In S5/6 a combination of UPS (Unified Point Scores) and past performance is used to set targets. 
Within the broad general education class teachers set personal learning targets for young people. 
The school engaged in several new initiatives to try to improve our SQA results by raising the attainment of pupils.  All S5 pupils 
received a one-to-one interview with either their Head of House or link SLT members.  S4 pupils who had the potential to gain 5 or 
more level 5 awards were likewise interviewed.  Parents were also interviewed.  Parents were also invited to attend both sets of 
interviews. 
All S3 pupils received group talks to raise their expectations of their potential from their year head. 
Mr Gallanagh offered a study skills and exam technique workshop on a Saturday morning.  Unfortunately this was not well 
attended. 
The Parent Council ran a similar event for Parents and S3/4 pupils.  This had a good response. 
The school introduced a House Merit System rewarding good behaviour, effort and homework completion. 
Many departments offered Supported Study and Easter revision classes. 
Targeted pupils were invited to these. 
Many departments are producing revision CD’s to support pupils with exam preparations. 
The school held year group award ceremonies recognising pupil achievement. 
During House Time all pupils undertook work on raising attainment and in the production of study cards. 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

7



Appendix1:  Attainment Figures 

 

SQA Results 2011 

          School                     Argyll and Bute       

 

            2010   2011  2012            2010      2011    2012                

In S4  5+ Standard Grades 1-6          93        87   96   94           91         94              

 5+ Standard Grades 1-4                   79        72             81    82    76         77           

 5+ Standard Grades 1-2                   36        31             29   38    36         35                     

 

 

In S5 1+ Higher Grades A-C                     42         44           42       47 48     45             

 3+ Higher Grades A-C                     15         17           20             23        26            24                      

 5+ Higher Grades A-C                       6          6             6        8         13            10                                             

 

In S6 5+Level 5             57 55  54             56 59     59               

 

1+ Higher Grades A-C           55 52  52   54        58            58                  

3+ Higher Grades A-C                     34 31  26   32 36     38             

 5+ Higher Grades A-C                     22 21  17   22 22     27             

 1+ Advanced Higher                        12 8    8   15        16            21                     

 

 

 

P
a

g
e
 3

8



 1 

 

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 

 

BUTE AND COWAL AREA 

COMMITTEE 

2 OCTOBER 2012 

DEVELOPMENT AND 

INFRASTRUCTURE 

 

 

 

JAPANESE KNOTWEED CONTROL – BUTE AND COWAL AREA   

 

 
 

1. SUMMARY 

 
1.1  Following previous reports to this committee, Members will be aware of 

operations which have been carried out to tackle the presence of Japanese 
Knotweed as part of an initial 3 year programme.  

 
1.2  This report advises on the areas so far treated, success rate and proposed 

areas for future treatment. 
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1  That the content of this report is noted.  
 
 

3. BACKGROUND 

 
3.1  In summer 2010 a 3 year trial of control methods was started with several 

methods of treatment initially proposed.  These included cutting/burning, stem 
injection and chemical spraying.  Of the three methods, chemical spraying was 
quickly settled on as the most suitable technique to implement at that time, the 
others being overly labour intensive for the situations being tackled. 

 
3.2  Areas prioritised for initial works were later supplemented by additional sites 

both on council land and on land managed by Bute Estates, the latter funded 
by the estate. 

 
3.3  Council land treated comprises: 
 

Cowal Bute 

 
Clachaig 
Bullwood Rd  
Kilmun village 
Red Bridge area 
Kames, Royal Terrace 

 
Argyle Terrace 
McNab’s Brae 
Bannatyne Mains Rd 
North Bute Cemetery 
Kames Bay 

Agenda Item 8aPage 39



 2 

Cluniter Point 
Torr Alain 
Tank slip Tighnabruaich 
Red Bridge, West Bay 
St Catherines depot, St Catherines 
Broxwood depot, Sandbank 
Whole verge between Toward Primary and  
Sailing club 
Whole verge opposite MOD houses, Toward 
B836 opposite Dalinlongart 
Walkers garage to 40mph sign (A885) 
Kilmun new footpath 

Rothesay Cemetery (behind flexitec) 
Mill Lade, Rothesay 
Lovely Cottage, Port Bannatyne 
Church Car Park, Argyle Street, Rothesay 
Kirk Dam, Lovers Lane, Rothesay 
 
 

 
 
3.4  Bute Estates ground treated is shown in the following table: 
 

 
Hermitage (Ascog Rd/Mount Stuart Rd) 
Wellpark Rd 
Birgidale Schoolhouse 
West Church Car Park 
Skeoch Wood Entrance 

 
Hawthorn Lane 
High Rd, Port Bannatyne 
Skippers Wood Entrance 
Montford Shore 
Meadows plots 
 

 
 
3.5  Of the sites treated, significant dieback of knotweed has been observed, with 

those sites treated for a third consecutive year showing a reduction in growth 
by between 80% - 90%.  All will require some degree of follow up action. 

 
3.6  All sites will be reviewed during Spring/Summer 2013 to determine extent of 

respraying necessary and further sites will be brought into the cycle where 
resources permit.  Currently, land at the burn in Port Bannatyne is proposed to 
be included. 

 
3.7  Priority sites for inclusion will primarily include sight lines for road safety and 

council land where there is risk of knotweed spreading to privately owned 
ground.  Further sites can be considered at Members’ request, although the 
council has no remit to control knotweed on private ground.  

 
3.8  Bute Estates have indicated a willingness to continue their input to the 

programme and this is welcomed as such involvement increases the likelihood 
of successful control on adjacent council land. 

 
3.9  Where appropriate circumstances exist, it is possible that third sector 

organisations could contribute to the control programme and the council could 
contribute to training of individuals (cost of training approximately £430 per 
person).  This is however expected to be implemented in a small number of 
cases in the short term. 

 
 

Page 40



 3 

 

 

4.   CONCLUSION 

 

4.1 Members are advised that treated in the main show very significant dieback of 
up to 90%.  All will require further treatment and monitoring and there should 
be an opportunity to extend the programme onto additional sites presuming 
appropriate resource allocation is in place. 

 
 

5. IMPLICATIONS 

 
POLICY:   None   
FINANCIAL:   Costs absorbed within Streetscene revenue budget 
PERSONNEL:  None 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY: None  
LEGAL:   None 
 
 
For further information:  Iain Welsh, Amenity Asset Manager - 01631 569180 
 

 
Jim Smith 
Head of Roads and Amenity 
September 2012 
 

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 

 

BUTE AND COWAL AREA 

COMMITTEE 

2 OCTOBER 2012 

DEVELOPMENT AND 

INFRASTRUCTURE 

 

 

 

CEMETERY HEADSTONE SAFETY PROJECT - CURRENT DEVELOPMENTS   
 

 
 

1. SUMMARY  

 
1.1 Previous reports to this committee have described the position regarding 

headstone safety in Bute and Cowal. 

 
1.2 This report advises of the current position in this area.  
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1 Members note the information contained and the remedial actions proposed.  
 

 

3. DETAIL 

3.1 A report presented in April 2011 report listed a number of proposed actions at 
cemeteries, subject to staff and resource availability and trials of new 
materials.  These are summarised in Table 1. 

3.2 “Wet Grab” adhesive has been trialled and is now considered appropriate for 
use on smaller stones as a short term fix to eliminate the need for lowering 
headstones until a more permanent proposal can be identified and funded.  
This is being utilised at the sites shown in Table 1. 

3.3 Further discussions have taken place with the Employability Team and 
external funding is being sought to allow their continued involvement with this 
project.   

3.4 Information is now available to be sent to monumental masons and lair 
holders requesting them to rectify problems with loose headstones at their 
own expense.  It should be noted that some lair holders have already had 
their headstones repaired to the appropriate standard when requested.  

3.5 As staff are now available, following completion of summer maintenance, 
works will commence to lower the worst of the loose stones for subsequent 
re-erection. 

Agenda Item 8bPage 43



 2 

3.6 In the worst affected areas, where loose stones are widespread, then sections 
of cemeteries will be closed to public access, with visitors having to make 
appointments through the area office prior to gaining access to the site. 

3.7 Repairs in Cowal cemetery are complete. 

 

TABLE 1 - Number of stones in each area by cemetery  

 

Area Cemetery Already 

lowered 

Stones currently 

unsafe & still 

standing 

Proposal 

Bute Kingarth 21 94 Restrict access or lower 
stones in older section 

 Barone 0 151 Trial adhesive on smaller 
stones 

 North Bute 36 173 Restrict access or lower 
stones in older section. 

Trial adhesive on smaller 
stones 

 Townhead 150 386 Restrict access or lower 
stones in older section 

Trial adhesive on smaller 
stones 

Cowal Millhouse 0 232 Trial adhesive on smaller 
stones 

 Kilmodan 0 74 Restrict access or lower 
stones  

 Strachlachla
n 

18 0 Identify resource for 
phased re-erection 

 Kilmorlich 0 38 Restrict access or lower 
stones  

 Colintraive 0 9 Trial adhesive on smaller 
stones 

 Kilmun 100 0 Identify method of work for 
steep ground 

 Lochgoilhead 0 65 Restrict access or lower 
stones  

Page 44



 3 

 Strachur 0 116 Restrict access or lower 
stones in older section 

Trial adhesive on smaller 
stones 

 Dunoon 540  Identify resource for 
phased re-erection 

 

4. SUMMARY  

4.1 The actions summarised above in Table 1 are those currently proposed at 
each site. 

4.2 Where larger stones are present then lair holders and monumental masons 
are requested to rectify loose stones at their own expense prior to 
Streetscene teams taking substantial action, unless there is a threat of 
immediate danger, in which case Streetscene will lower the appropriate 
stones. 

 

5. IMPLICATIONS 

 
5.1 Policy Service Asset Management, Cemetery Management 

Rules  

   

5.2 Financial  Resources need to be identified to enable safe re-
erection of stones, although a proportion of work may 
be completed by Streetscene staff.  Contributions can 
initially be sought from lair holders and monumental 
masons.  Resource required for investigation of large 
stones and subsequent repair programme. 

   

5.3 Personnel Additional staff trained to inspect stones and rectify 
dangerous examples. 

   

5.4 Equalities Impact 
Assessment 

None 

   

5.5 Legal Argyll and Bute Council duty of care. 
 
 
For further information, please contact: Iain Welsh, Amenity Asset Manager 01631 
569180 
 
 
Jim Smith 
Head of Roads and Amenity 
September 2012 
 

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



 
ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL 

 
BUTE AND COWAL AREA 

COMMITTEE 
DEVELOPMENT AND 
INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES 

 
Tue 2nd OCT 2012 

 

 
PROVISION OF BOLLARDS, RESTRICTION OF VEHICLE ACCESS TO 
DUNOON -  VICTORIA PARADE  

 

 
1.0 SUMMARY 
 

1.1  Introduction of Lockable Bollards to limit vehicular access at the above location 
to authorised users only.  

   
2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 Members are asked to approve the installation of removable bollards on Victoria 
Parade (Dunoon) as indicated in Appendix1. 

 
3.0 DETAILS 
 

3.1 Further to the paper presented to the August Area Committee and the 
deferment of a decision on Dunoon bollards. Discussions at August Business 
Day clarified the section of Victoria Parade of concern from Elected Members. A 
revised location for bollards was agreed.  

 
4.0 CONCLUSION 
 
4.1  Permits the erection of bollards at the locations marked on App 1. Keys will be 

issued to emergency services, Scottish Water and council services including 
Pier Master, to allow authorised access only.  

 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 

 
 5.1 Policy  - none 
 
 5.2 Financial – Funded from Revenue Maintenance Budget 
 
 5.3 Legal - None 
 
 5.4 HR - None 
 
 5.5 Equalities - None 
 
 5.6 Risk – Segregates Vehicles and Pedestrians in poplar locations. 
 
 5.7 Customer Service – none 
 
6.0 APPENDICES  
 
6.1 APPENDIX 1 - Victoria Parade (Dunoon) Bollard Locations 
  
Executive Director of Development and Infrastructure Services 

Sept 2012 
                                                  
For further information contact: Callum Robertson 01631 569197  

Agenda Item 8cPage 47



    APPENDIX 1     
 

 
 
Page 1 of 2 
 
 
 

Page 48



 
Dunoon Esplande  
 
Image of South Access point opposite Kilbride Rd 
 

  
Allowance made for additional restriction of access over grassed section. 
 
Exact number required, to be determined from onsite dimensions 
Maximum number expected to be 5, overall cost to supply and install ~£700 > £1000  
Bollards 1.5m c/c to restrict all vehicular access. 
 
i.e  Unlocking one bollard allows 2.9m clear space, sufficient for cars and small vans. 
Unlocking of second bollard only required for larger vehicle access. 
 
Initial trial, two bollards adjacent to lighting column.  
Keys still to be distributed prior to locking of bollards in permanent position. 
Driver behaviour and potential effect on grass area to be monitored.  
 

 

 
 
 
Page 2 of 2 

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10bPage 51
NOT FOR PUBLICATION by virtue of paragraph(s) 9

of Schedule 7A of the Local Government(Scotland) Act 1973

Document is Restricted



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10cPage 53
NOT FOR PUBLICATION by virtue of paragraph(s) 9

of Schedule 7A of the Local Government(Scotland) Act 1973

Document is Restricted



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 55
NOT FOR PUBLICATION by virtue of paragraph(s) 9

of Schedule 7A of the Local Government(Scotland) Act 1973

Document is Restricted



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Meeting of 7th August 2012
	6a Area Committee Meeting Cycle
	B & C  LACPG AC BD meetings 2012_2013_AMENDED

	7b School Holidays and In Service Days: 2013/2014 and 2014/2015
	7c Dunoon Grammar School Performance Report 2011/12
	8a Japanese Knotweed Control Bute & Cowal Area
	8b Bute & Cowal Headstones
	8c Provision of Bollards, restriction of vehicle access to Victoria Parade, Dunoon
	10b 60b Edward Street, Dunoon
	10c Business Case for lighting at the playpark in Sandbank
	Sandbank Playarea IBC


